ADARE PARISBH.

SITUATION, This Parish is situated in the Baronies of
Coshma, Connello Upper and Kenry, and is bounded or the xxx

NAME. Adare is called in Irish Ath Dara, that is the
Ford of the Oak, Vadum Quercus.

The Churech called Adare o0ld Church stauds in ruins at the
distance of about one hundred and fifty yards to the nortusast
of Desmond old Castle. The walls remain perfoet; it has three
apartments and four gables. Tne whole length of the buiiding
is one hundred feet. The east part is gixteen feet broad; the

next or middle part is twenty one feet broad; the third or west

one is twenty three feet bread. All the windows are modern
excepting protably the one on the east gable, which is round
at top, is five and a2 haif feet by six inches and buill with
chiselled brown sand stone. The =ide walls are about fourteen
feet high and threc and a half feet thick., Materials are lime
stones of large and swall sizes, irregularly laid with lime and
sand mortar.

At the distance of twenty three yards to the north of
this bailding stand the walls of another Church, in pserfeact
condition, which measure thirty six feet by twenty fect on
the outside. The window on ths east gable measures nine feet
by one and a nalf feet; is constructed with chiselled lime
stones and pointed at top. There were two windows oa the
gside wulls, one on each, at the distance of five feet from
the east gable, which are now defaced. On the south side
wall, at the distance of six feet from the west gable, 1g
a pointed doorway vbuilt with chiselled lime-toue, which is
eight feet in height by five feet two inches in breadth sn
the inside; nnd seven feet two inches in height by tbhree
feet eleven inches in breadth on the outside. The arch is
formed of two stones.
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LIMERICK. 65

The walls of this building are about fifteen fect high
and four feet thick. Regular sized stones and cement of
lime and sand mortar are the materials of the edifice.

There was an Abbey here formerly called "Black Friar’s
Abbey". The only remains of it are the nave and part cof the
choir of the Church, which after the Dissolution have been
fitted into a Roman Catholic Chapel, ncw the Parish Chapel
of Adere, and a tower which is in the centre of the bhuilding,
about forty feet high.

About half a furlong to the aorth of this Abbey, and a
short distance to the south ¢f the Bridge of Adare, stood
"White Friar’s Abbey" the remains of which, namely the nave
and part of the conventual Church have been after the Disso-
lution fitted up for a Protestant Church, now the parochial
one. A square tower stands on the middle of this building.

This establishment was it appears very extensive; the
walls of many unroofed edifices are to be seen around the
place. About half a furlong to the east of the latter Abbey
and 8t the east side of the river, within the Demesne of
Adare Castle, stand the ruins of "The Poor or Grey Friar’s
Abbey" which consiet of the nave, choir and south transept
of the Church in tolerable preservation with a square tower
rising to the height of sixty feet. And the cloisters,
offices, refectory and several other bulldings still remain.

There is a large yew tree standing in the middle of this
cloister which measures eigh* feet in girth and is in full
bloom. Here follows the several references to the place
found in the documents in our hands:—

Athadara (Adare).

A.D, 1465. A Franciscan Monastery was founded at Atha-
dara* in Munster, in the Diocese of Limerick, on the banks
of the River Maigh, by Thomas, Barl of Kildare and (his wife)
Judith, the daughter of James, Earl of Desmond who erected a
tomb for themselves in it.

* Athdara, now Adaire, a small town on the River Maige
in the Barony of Kenry nine miles west of the City of Limerick.

A.D. 1502, Donogh O'Brien died. He was son of Brian,
who was son of Conor, who was son of Mahon, who was son of
Mortogh, who was son of Torlogh, who was son of Teige, who
wes son of Connor na Buldaine, who was son of Donogh Cair-
breach etc. This Donogh was the fountain of the prosperity
and affluence of Munster; he was Lord of the district
extending from Adair to Limerick and from Baile Nua to the
Monastery of Nenagh and was Lord of Aharlagh and Kill-Beithne,
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A.D. 1579. The Lord Chief Justice of Ireland, Sir
William Drury, was at this time in Cork and with him aled
were the Barl of Kildare and Sir Nicholasgs Maulby. Thes:
(noblemen) set out towards tne County of Limerick and pitched
their camp in the neighbourhood of Kilwallock. Hither the
Barl of Desmond came to mest them and 2ndeavoured to imoress ROR
it upon their minds that he himself had not participated in
the proceedings of Jamzs Mac-Maurice and had not been in-
strumental in drawing him into the country or in the crimes
committed by his relatives; and he delivered up to the vhief
Justice his only son and heir as 2 hostage to ensure hiu
fidelity to the Crowan of England. A promiss was thercupon
made to the Earl that his territory should not be plundored
in future, Lut alithougn this promise was made it was nsver
adhered to, for his people were slain, his cattle destroyed
and his corn and edifices burned.

The Chief Justice aftrwards sei out from the Camn o 203
Kilmallock =ttended by three or four captains and four nundred
BEnglish and Irish soldiers to search the woods of Colli-Mor
and try whether they cownld discover any of their enemicy in
them. They fell in wita the yvoung sons of tre Farl of “esmond
viz., Jonn and James Oge at Go:.t-wna-Tiobrat, Field of Lno
Spring, and here a furious engagement took place fu whi:h the
reople oi the Lord Crief Justice were defeated and thk:) of
their captzins slain, viz., sztaln Herbert, Captain Hustace
and Captain Spris, together with three nundred of thelr men. 204
Many wmade their escaps to the camp by flight, The Cried Just-
ice then removed hig camp to Bel-Atna-na nDeise, which is situ-
ated in the very cenitre of Cliu-M=il-Mic-Ughaine, and iere he
contracted a disenpse wnich subsequently brought on hig death.
Captain ullby was lelt to wmaintain (carry on) the way a1gainst
the Geraldires and ivne Lord Justice was conveyed in & vhariot
to Waterfore, winere ne died. A nobleman, one of the Queen's
pecple, Bir Williaw Pelbaw by nawre, who nad come froo Ingland
that very week was solicited bty the Court of Dublin to succeed
him in the office and to protect Ulster, Meath and Finpgal
against the ravages of Ey-Niaft «1.d the Irish of Lealh Chuinn
(as the Chiefl Justic: latsly doceased had done) while Uaptain
Malby should reduce the Momoniarg to subjection. 800

-

In the same week the Earl of Ormond returrned to Iresland,
having been thres years in England. With regard to Captain
Mﬁnlby, ha, ofter ths desnth ol the Lord Chief Justice, vroceeded
to Limerick to obtaln a new supply of artillery and 1o procure

provigions for his soldier. Fram Lﬂ'xo he marehed ' Has-
Gebhtens {Asksaton). O t%e sams day the ysung =sons tha
D)

Barl of Degsmond came to look for arms or spoils in the Jounty
of Limerick and they ard the Captain mst cach other fi:2 to

face although thney had sought to avoid instead of to w=at him.
A batvle was Dbravely fought vetween bobh parties in whi-h the
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Iricsh army were so resolutely pressed by the Captain’s forces 206
that they were finally defeated with the loss of Thomas, the

scn of John Oge, who was son of John, who was son of Thomas,

who was son of the Barl, and Owen the son of Edmond Oge, who

was son of HBdmond, who was son of Torlogh Mc Sheehy and a

great number of the constables of the Clan Sheehy as well as

a great many of the forces of the sons of the Earl.

Considerable spoils, consisting of weapons and military
accoutrements, were left on this occasion to the Captain's
people. This battle was fought at Aonach-Beag. The Captain
after this remained almost a whole week at Askeaton, the 207
Geralidines threatening every day to give him battle although
they did not. The Captain destroyed the Monastery of that
town and tnen proceeded to Adaire where he remained subjuget-
ing the people of that neighbourhood until the New Justice,
Sir Williem Pelham, the Barl of Kildare, and the Barl of Or-
mond came and Joilned him, They all encamped together in Hy-
Conillo. The Earl of Desmond did not proceed to meet them on
this ocrasion because his territory had been ravaged and his
people destroyed contrary to their promise to him that these
should not be molested. The English seeing that the Barl 208
had Joined his relatives, consulted together and resolved to
station their warders in his towns, viz., in Lough-Gur, Rath-
Mor, Castle-Morrigson, Adaire and Kilmallock and depart them-
selves for their respective homes. In consequence oi this
the whole country from Luchair Deaghaidh tc the Suire and
from Kinfebrat to the Channon was rendered miserable.

A.D. 16€1., TUpon one ozcasion (it happened) a fierce and
merciless hody of the soldiers of Adaire, having been divided
into two parties went forth orne by land and the other by water
to traverse Kenry (and the lands lying) along the side of the 209
Maig (Coshms Barony) and to engage with the rebels or force
booty from them.

These two parties met together at a short distance from
Baile~Ui-Chauthlain where they were encountered by David Oge
(the son of David of the Lake, who was scn of Thomas, who was
son of John, who was son of Thomas, who was son of Philip, who
was son of the Knight) and his forces who made a fierce attack
upon them, =wnd having surrounded them, fell upon them so vio-
lently that they soon left them but a2 heap of blood stained
trucks and mutilated and margled carcasses. Very few of them
escaped, the grester number being slaugitered on that spot by 210
David and his people.

As soon as this was heard at Adaire the Captain of that
town assembled trne soldiers of Kilmallock and set out at the
head of a cruel aad vigerous boedy of men to traverse Kenry
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with a view to see whether he could find man or men upon whom

to wreak his vengeauce for the killing of his soldiers. He
arrived at Bnuile-Ui-Chathlair one of the Towns of Purcell who

had always as-isted the Crown from the very commencement of

the War between the Bnglish and the Geraldinss to tha*t time,

The Captain slew one hundred ani fifty women and children 211
and all sort of persons he found inside and outside the town.

A.D, 15883, John Carrach the son of William, who was son
of Theobald Burke, heir of the Suir (i.e., of the district
lying along the Suire) who had hitherto been implicated in
the Insurrection gave himself up on "protection", After
the dezth vf the Harl of Desmond he went inro the Territory
of the Gersldines in search of booty and made no delay, not
until he arrived at Adaire where he seized upon all the cattle.
The warders of the town rose up in pursuit of him. John with
his small body of norsemen turned round upon them but a mus- 212
quet was directly levelled 2t his helmet and the ball entered
his head, so that he was thrown from his horse. His people
carried off thne vlunder but left John behind who was afterwards
carried to Limsrick where he was hanged by the Commissioners
of that town.

A.D. 1599, P Y wER

When the Earl of Essex had takcn Cahir he, accompanied
by the Barl of Ormcnd and the other chiefs, proceeded with
their army to Limerick and pitched his camp outiside the town.
Here he was visited by Sir Toniers Clifford, Governor ¢f Conn- 813
sught; by the Earl of Clanrickard (Ulick the son of Richard
Saxonach) and by tnhe Barl of Thomond (Donogh the son of Conor
0’Brien). When these nobles had advised with one another for
some time and had come to fixXed resolutions, the Governor and
the Barl of Clanrickard returned back to Connaught and the
Barl of Bsssex, the Barl of Ormond and the Earl of Thomond
proceeded into Muunster to see whether they could invade (sub-
due) the Geraldines. OCn the first night after having left
Limerick, i the month »~f June, they encamped upon the banks
of tne River of Adaire and as they advenced on the next day, 214
Saturday, through Robhair, the soldiers and youths of the
Barl of Dezwmond s:d the Geraldine troops met them face to
face. The recepticn which they (zhe Garaldines) gave to the
representative of their Sovereign on his first visit to them
was 8 very fierce and disagrceable one; for they dischsrged
into the eyes« of him and his army the fire and black smoke of
powder, and showers of balls from straightly pointed (=imed)
guns and he heard the fierce and outrageous shouts of soldiers
and champious eager for battle, instead of the mild lzauguage
of courtesgy, obedience and submission with which he should
have been addressed. The result of this attack was tuat great 218
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nunmbers of the Ez-1 of Essex's men were slain and that e
was not suffered to pass much further cn that day.

In 8mitn’s Collections for Limerick (MSS, R.I.A.) are 216
the following references to this place:—

"Weligious Houses in Limerick®™ (From Sir James Ware).

"Fryery of Athdare or Adaire, an Abbey founded for
Friars of the Order of the Blessel Trinity for the r-=demption
of captives, in the reign of Edward I."

Adaire is mentioned in nine places in Smith’s Miscell-
aneous Limerick Papers.

(Gough's Camden):— 217
Adaire.

Adaire, for Trinitarians, in the reign of Bdwari I, by
John, Earl of Kildare, in & small ancient town eight miles
from Limerick in the Barony of Coushma on the River Mage now
consisting of a few wretched cabins; some large and very
perfect ruins remain (Archd. 414-415; Parrar 431). Jcha,
KBarl of Kildare, son of Barl Thomas, who died 1316 founded
here a house of Austin Friars; great part of which also
remain in gocod prescrvation (Archd. 414-416). Thomas, Barl
of Kildare, founded here alsn 1465 a house of Grey Friars,
of which the steeple remains (Archd. 416-417). 218

This place gives title to 8ir Richard Quin, Bart., who
was created Baron Adouré of Adaire, July 30 1800,

(Archdall’'s Mon. Hib. R.I.A ) Vol. 2, p.414:—- 219

A smell town situated i1n the Berony of Kennery wnd on
the River Mage, which now consists of a few wretched cabius
though it was formerly a place of note.

Trinitarian Friary.

A house was founded here on the south side of the town
for Friars of ths Order of the Holy Trinity, for the redemp- 220
tion of Christian captives, in the reign of King Bdward I
(War. Mon.) by Joun, Barl of Kildare (Lodge’s Kildare). One
writer alone gives this foundation to the family of Clangibbon
(Allamande) . .

A.D. 1319. DPeter was Prior, for in the same ysar we find
that Friar Johr Seys and Friar Gilbert de Clare, together with
Master Jchn Croyne were accused of taking by force arnd violence
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goods and chattels of the said Prior Peter, to the amount and
value of one hundred shillings; they gave bail for their app-
earsnce to answer te the sard charge (King p.256).

A,D., 1326, This year, on the 12th July, a license was
granted to Peter, ther head of this Order in Ireland, that he
and nis Convent might acquire from William Northen in pure and
perpetual alms, three acres of land in Adaire, which he held
in capite from John, the son of John, Barl of Kildars (1d).
Inquisition teken on the worrow of St. Martin XX Q. Elizabeth
finds that 4th October and of her reign she demised to Sir
Warnem St. Leger this house, also the Abbey of Nenanghe and
the Nunnery of Saint Catherine both in the County of Limerick
with all their possessions at the annual rent of £22. 17s, 84.
Irish money. Inguisition 8th March XX Q. Elizabeth firds that
the Rectcery of Adaire appropriated to the Prior of tnis Friary
was of the annval value cf 20s. and the presentation of the
Vicarage belornged to the Earl of Kildare (Chief Rem. MS.).

Inquisition on the morrow of St, Mertin. Inquisition
taken on the morrow of the Holy Trinity XXVI Q. Elizabeth
finds that 16th March 25 of her reign she demised to James
Goulde, Gent, the Monastery of Nernagh and the Nunnery of St.
Catnerine, otherwise the Nurnnery of Kailaghe alias Negilaghe
in this County with all their possessions for the term of 40
years at the snnual rent of £22. 17s. 8d.

Nov. 4th XXXVITI Q. Elizabeth, this Friary with all the
houses on the site of the same and certain gardens containing
about foriy acres in the burgags of Adaire, and twenty acres,
ore small park and one carve of lard in the fields oif Adaire,
together with the possessions of the Grey Friars, the Preach-
ing Friars and the Augustin Friars of the sama; the Abbey of
Monasteransragh and the Nunnery of St. Catherine, alius Monas-
ter-Ni-Calliagh were granted to Sir Henry Wallop, Kaight, for
ever, by fealty only, in free common soccage and not in capite,
nor by Knights service, at the annual rent of £26. 17s. 8d.,
Irish money, he maintaining two able horsemen on the premises,
provided also that no part whatsoever of the same should be
ealienated to the Irish or forfeited (Auditor General),

Some large and very perfect ruins of this Friary still
remain. The steeple resembles a Castie and 1s supported by a
plain arch with four dilagonal ogives meeting in the centre and
stairs leading to the battlements. The nave and choir are
small and plain, without anything remarkable; in the rere are
several other ruins; the entrance into the Friary was by a low
gate on the west side, which is still standing.

Augustinian Friary.

Was founded on the south side of the river by John, Barl
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of Kildare, son to Earl Thomas, who died in the year 1315; he

gave to this Friary the Village of Modolleghy and certain 286
lands and tenements in the Town of Adaire (Survey of the Manor

of Adaire made 155%. War MSS, Vol.34) cowsisting of a place,

two burgages and e half (King p.422). The King, Edwari II,
confirmed tunese grants 13th December A.D. 1317 (Lodge’s Kil-

dare p.40). At the suppression oi' Monasteries, this Friary,

then called the Black Abbey, was seized by a burgage containing

a fourth part of a2 ploughland irn and near the Town of Adaire

and half o ploughland in Modullyhy, a salmon-lecap on the River

Mdge and the tithes of the same (King p.421). This friary 227
with its possessions, containing by estimation, two acres of

land, sixteen cottages =nd seven gardens, in the site thereof
with the appurtenances, tenemenis, ete, belonging to the same
containing thirty five acres of land, eighteen of arable and

three ¢f pasture in Adaire; a parcel of land in the Pariszh

alled Modully alias Modqll,hie containing halfl & carve znd

the tithes of the ssme with the tithes of the aforesail twenty 288
one acres, the appurternanres thereof anrd “Ls Tienirg wier on
the River lage, were granted to Sir Henry Walliop, Knight See
the Trinitarian Friary.

A great part of thig Friary =till remsins in goou preser-
vation; the steeple, siwilur to that or the Trinitarians, is
supported on an archj the choir is large, with stalls, etc.,
and the nave answerable thereto, with a leteral aisle on the
the scuth side; to th2 north of the steeple nre some beauntiful 229
cloisters with Gothic wirdows, within which on thres sides of
the square, are corrodories and on most of these windows are
escutcheons wich the Hnglish =nd saltue crosses, generally
ranged alternately; the workmenship is simply elegant, tre
princip«l parts being of hewn lime wnich appears so fresu us
to give it, on the whole, a mcdern yet venerable appeara-ce. 230
Adjoirirg the cloisters wre cseveral apartments which sesm to
be much more ancient than the other psris of the building.

This descripticn ¢f these Friaries was taken in the month
of May 1781.

D

Grey Friary.

Was found=d in the eszt part of the town in the ycay 1464
by Thomas, Hari of Kiloare, snd Judith, his wife, daughlier of
James, Harl of Desmoid; txe Church ¢f thise Friary, built at
the sole expense of the Earl and Courtess, was conssceratad 231
29th September 1464 (Arn. 4 M¥aet.,) when the noble foundars
presented it with two gilver crolices and a bell which cost
£10, Tre larl also wmade a grant of the ground wherson tae
Friary was ersctel, with = garden, an orchard and a cerinin
large enclosure, together with eight messuages, geven aczras
of swell measure and conveulent pasioreage, ho 28, the Harl, R38
died the 25th Marcw 1478. Anid his Countess lived Lu th> year
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1486, when she was interred in the choir (Survey ut Supra %
War MSS, Vol.24, p.162). Raymond de Burgh, who died on the
29th of July in the year 1562, chose this Friary for the
place of his sspulture (War ut Supra).

At the general suppression, the Prior of this house was
found seized of the same, with a pigeon house, seventy acres
of land within the precinctis, also of the tithes therecof and
two ploughlaads adjcining the Friary, one called Upland or
Bernard and the other the Castle and half pluughland of Rob-
ertstown; the village and half ploughland of Kilkerely alias
Kilcoyle, alias Kilbridej the field of Gorwore near Adaire
and sixteen acres adjoining;. the meadow or marsh of Corkin-
minister lying c¢n the south side of the Friary; the wmill and
water-course of Castle Roberts; a mill and water-course in
Adaire; two salmon weirs on the River Mage and an eel-weir
in the Parish of Adaire; the meadow of Nonynshaghragherees
situated con tne south of the Friary and a garden piot near
to the same; the Rectory and Vicarage of the Town and Parish
of Adaire togetner with all the tithes issuing from the foll-
owing towns, viz., Adaire; Fiunittstown; Lissemarry; Choro;
Toagh; Kilnookane; Lisskealla; Graige; Derryvenane, Knockane}
Ballylongford; Currawe; Kilrcgan; Comyns; Boaltally; Castle
Robert; Reynroe; Cloghrane; Killivaraghe; Rower; Fannignstownj
Liscollybehy; Gowlane; Ballymacclery; Glanenoe; half of Bally-
geill and from 2ll the lands in the Parish of Adaire (King
p.318). This Friary with its poussessicns containing sixteen
acres of land, a Church, etc¢., three parks, a water mill and
water course, with a fishing weir on the River Mage, was
granted to Sir Henry Wallop, Knight, 4th November XXXVII Q.
Elizabeth together with twenty acres, one small park and one
carve of land in the fields of Adaire, two messuages, twelve
acres and half a carve of land in Castle Roberts and a ruin-
ous castle; three messuages, two cottages, twenty four acres
of arable and six of pasture, a water mill and a water course
and half a carve of land in Kilcoile, alias Kilerill, with
the tithes of the Rectories of Adare, Ballifuiter, Choro,
Cloghran, Twoth, Curragh, Killnage, Roer, Killerill, Bally-
robert, Ballyfanynge and half of Balligoell, all in this
country and within the Parish of Adaire (alterages excepted)
and a fishing weir on the River Mage, parallel of the poss-
essions of the Monastery of the Preaching or Dominican Friars
of Adaire. Thus it is mentioned in the records but no traces
of this Friary cen now be found, save a lofty square steeple.
See the Trinitarian Friary in this town.

Also Fitzgerald in his History of Limerick describes the
Abbeys at Adaire, but his words are a mere repetition of Arch-
dall's descriptions of them giver above.
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Castles.

There was a Castie in Finnlitterstown, scme remains of
whioh are still visivble. The east and south walls are still
standing and six feet of the height of thes west one. The di-
mensions gould not be taken. It had four stories, the two
lower of which were arched underneath. Finnitterstown is 240
called in Irish by some persons Baile an Fhirtdéara and by
othere Baile Fhliteara. This, it is highly probable, is Bailse
an Eletearaigh mentioned in the Annals of the Four Masters at
the year 1899. (It may be stated for certain).

Baile an Bletearaigh - Annals 4 Masters. 241

A.,D. 1599. When the EFarl of Essex had taken Cahir, he,
accompanied by tune Barl of Ormond and the other Chiefs, pro-
ceeded with their army to Limerick and pitched his camp out-
side the town. Here he was visited by Sir Conyers Clifford,
Governor of Cornaught, by the Barl of Clanrickard (Ulick, the
son of Richard Saxanach) and by the Barl of Thomond (Dorogh,
the son of Conor O'Brien). When tn=ese nobles had advised with
one another for some time and had come to fixed resolutions,
the Governor and the Barl of Clanrickzard returned back to Con-
naught and the Barl of Essex, the Barl of Ormond and the Harl
of Thomond proceeded into Munster Lo see whether they could 242
invade (subdve) the Geraldines. On the first night after hav-
ing left Limerick in the month of Juune they encamped upon the
banks of the River Adaire and as they advenced on the next day
Saturday, through Robhair, the scldiers and youths of the Harl
of Desmond and tne Geraldine troops met them face to face. The
reception whieh they (the Geraldines) gave to the representa-
tive of their sovereign on his first visit to them was a very
fierce and disagreeable onc for thney discharged into the eyes
of him and his army the fire and black smoke of powder and 243
snowers of balls from straightly simea (pointed) guns and he
heard the fierce and nutrageous shouts of suldiers and champi-
ons eager for battle instead of the mild language of courtesy,
obedience and submission with (in) which he should have teen
addressed. The result of this attack was that great numbers
of the Barl of Bssex's men were glain and that he was not
suffered to pass much further on that day. He pitoched his
camp a short distance to the east of Askeyton and on the next
day, Sunday, he and tne Harls of Ormond and Thomond resolved
to send a party (body) of cavalry to lay (place) up ammunition 244
in Askeaton and not ‘o psss themselves any farther westwards
into Munster on that occasion. On the next day, Monday, they
returned eastwards and upon arriving close to Baile-an-ﬁlet—
earaigh, they received fierce snd resolute fighting and a
furious and dangerous battls from the Geraldines, in which
the Barl lost many of his people and among the rest an illus-
trious Knight of great ronour and renown, by name Henry Norris.
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The Barl of Essex then proceeded to Kilmallock, etc. See Lim-
erick at this year, p.480, for the conclusion of this article.

The ruins of Desmond’s Castle lie betwesn "White Friars"
and "Grey Friars Abbeys", It is 20w impossible to measure
its length or breadth, Its walls and apartments are nearly
s extensive as the largest of the Abbeys. It is on the east
side of the river. he east wall retains still a height of
fifty feet and is seven feet in thickness.

Rowermore and Rowerbeg are names of two townlands in
this Parish. Rower is pronounced Robhar in Irish and is the
gsame with Robhair mentioned in the Annals of the Four Masters
at the year 1599. See extract just now inserted above.

Adaire Parish was traversed by A. Curry and his notes
and other references arranged by T. O'Conor.
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